
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Rochdale Township 
Committee

Enquiries to: Michael Garraway
Telephone: 01706 924716
Date: Tuesday, 1 March 2016

Dear Councillor

Rochdale Township Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Rochdale Township Committee to 
be held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Wednesday, 9 March 2016 commencing 
at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Rochdale Township Committee Membership 2015/16
Councillor Ali Ahmed
Councillor Shefali Farooq Ahmed
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Surinder Biant
Councillor Lynne Brosnan
Councillor Ian Duckworth
Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Jane Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Michael  Holly

Public Document Pack



Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Terry Linden
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman



Rochdale Borough Council

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 9 March 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 2

Members are requested to indicate at this stage any items on the 
agenda in which they intend to declare an interest.  Members are 
reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and the 
Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare the nature of 
any personal or discloseable pecuniary interest required of them and, 
in the case of any discloseable pecuniary interest, withdraw from the 
meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted otherwise 
within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Presentation - Young People 

3.  Open Forum 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise 
any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township.

4.  Greater Manchester Police 

5.  Minutes 3 - 9

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 6th January 2016.

6.  Rochdale Township Planning Sub-Committee 10 - 17

To note the minutes of the meetings of the Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub-Committee held on 17th November, 8th December 2015 
and 26th January 2016.

7.  Neighbourhood Planning – Designation of the proposed Rooley 
Moor Neighbourhood Area and Forum 

18 - 24

8.  Disposal of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift Road, 
Rochdale 

25 - 31

9.  Land at Sparth Bottoms, Rochdale 32 - 36

10.  Exclusion of Press and Public 



To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended.

11.  Land to the rear of Cherrington Drive, Castleton 37 - 41



P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 6th January 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor O’Neill (in the Chair); Councillors Ali Ahmed, Shefali Farooq 
Ahmed, Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, 
Brosnan, Duckworth, Farnell, James Gartside, Jane Gartside, Heakin, Holly, Hornby, 
Linden, Nickson, Sheerin, Sullivan, Wazir, Winkler, Zaheer and Zaman. 

OFFICERS:  S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), V. White, J. Butterworth, M. Reynolds, 
I. Trickett, S. Reay (Neighbourhoods Directorate), A. Eadie (Economy Directorate), 
J. Murphy and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  15 members of the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Sultan Ali, Meredith and Rashid. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
62 Further to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Cecile Biant and 
Councillor Surinder Biant each declared a personal interest in respect of agenda item 
9 (“Denehurst Park Masterplan”), as they were both members of the Friends of 
Denehurst Park group.

OPEN FORUM
63 The following issues were raised in the Committee’s Open Forum session:

a. Community Safety – Dew Meadow Close 
The Township Committee received a petition from Mr Steve Greenwood, requesting 
the overgrown pathway to the rear of the bungalows on Dew Meadows Close and 
Mountside Close to be permanently closed off where it meets Bentley Street and 
Heights Lane. It was stated that the pathway was only used by criminals. The 
bungalows on both Dew Meadows Close and Mountside Close were occupied mainly 
by elderly and vulnerable people with quite a few living alone. There have been many 
break-ins of properties and damage to properties and acts of vandalism caused. The 
Community Safety Officer advised that he had contacted the land owners, Peel 
Holdings Limited, about the possibility of closing the pathway off as the residents 
were requesting and discussions were progressing.

b. Taxi Issues 
The Township Committee was addressed by Mr. Hussain and Mr. Younis regarding 
issues appertaining to taxis and private hire vehicles in Rochdale town centre. They 
requested information as to why taxi vehicles could not use Smith Street and Drake 
Street? The Head of Highways Services replied that taxi vehicles could not use these 
two roads because of objections that had been received, on grounds of safety from 
Transport for Greater Manchester. The Chair suggested that the Head of the 
Council’s Highways Service be requested to convene a meeting involving the Chair 
and Vice Chair of the Rochdale Township Committee, representatives of the 
Council’s Licensing and Highways teams, representatives of Transport for Greater 
Manchester and representatives of the Borough’s licensed public hire and private 
hire trades to discuss the issues raised in relation to taxi vehicles using Smith Street 
and Drake Street.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



In response to a query from the taxi driver’s representatives the Head of Highways 
Services confirmed that Baillie Street was not closed permanently but was closed on 
a temporary basis because of works associated with the opening up of the River 
Roch. The taxi driver representatives requested that a Hackney Carriage Stand be 
appointed at Fleece Street, Rochdale between the hours of 7.00pm and 7.00am? 
The Head of Highways Services reported that a Traffic Regulation Order was 
presently being processed that would, if approved, provide more space for Hackney 
Carriage vehicles in Rochdale town centre.

DECIDED – That that the Head of the Council’s Highways Service be requested 
to convene a meeting involving the Chair and Vice Chair of the Rochdale 
Township Committee, representatives of the Council’s Licensing and Highways 
teams, representatives of Transport for Greater Manchester and 
representatives of the Borough’s licensed public hire and private hire trades to 
discuss issues raised in relation to taxi vehicles using Smith Street and Drake 
Street.

c. Flooding in Bamford
The Township Committee was addressed by Mrs S. Rothwell regarding flooding that 
had occurred, on 26th December 2015 in the Norden area of Rochdale, which was 
caused by water rising from blocked gullies. 

The Chief Executive replied that Peel Holdings Limited owned a proportion of the 
land in the area referred to and the Council were in discussions with them to arrive at 
an equitable solution, but he did assure residents that Officers were doing all they 
could to aid residents who were affected by the floods. The Chair of the Committee 
advised that Officers were working to deliver support for those most affected by the 
flooding and that he and the Committee’s Vice Chair were due to meet with 
representatives of local residents and businesses that had been worst affected.

d. Sale of Council owned Plots of Land   
Mr Faulkner and Mrs Walton addressed the Committee in relation to agenda item 7 
(Disposal of Surplus land adjacent to Spotland Library). Mr Faulkner reminded 
Members that there had been numerous such items at recent meetings of the 
Committee, whereby areas of land were being recommended for release by means 
of auction. He stated that such reports were being considered by Members without 
any prior consultation with residents who lived nearby or with groups that may be 
interested (in this case he cited a lack of consultation with Spotland and Falinge Area 
Forum).  

The Chair indicated that Mr Faulkner’s comments would be considered by Members 
when they came to consider agenda item 7, later in the meeting.

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - UPDATE
64 Representatives of Greater Manchester Police and M. Reynolds (Community 
Safety) updated the Township Committee on activities and initiatives that were 
undertaken by Greater Manchester Police in the Rochdale Township Division, in 
partnership with the Council’s Community Safety Team.

Particular reference was made to efforts and initiatives to counter street begging, 
burglaries and anti-social behaviour. The Police had achieved some significant 
successes in this regard.  

Page 4



Specific operations were being undertaken, or had recently been undertaken to 
counter off-road biking, crime/anti-social behaviour on the Metrolink service, 
burglaries in Rochdale town centre, drug misuse and shoplifting.

The Committee discussed the presentation in detail, generally welcoming the 
reduction in serious crime across the Township during the three month period that 
was covered, noting that the Community safety Officer would circulate to them the 
quarterly latest statistical information relating to crime patterns in the Rochdale 
Township. 
 
DECIDED – That the Greater Manchester Police update be noted and 
welcomed.

REVENUE BUDGET 2016/17 TO 2018/19 - UPDATE
65 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources 
which advised of a report that had previously been considered by the Cabinet on 15th 
December 2015 which updated Members on the implications of the Autumn 
Statement and Spending Review for 2015 and the risks around the budget.

The budget forecast was based on known and anticipated levels of spending and 
resources.  Significant budget risks were identified within the report.

DECIDED – that the Revenue Budget 2016/17 to 2018/19 - Update report be 
noted.
Eligible for call in – no.

MINUTES
66 The Township Committee considered the minutes of their most recent 
meeting held on 25th November 2015. Councillor O’Neill referred to Minute 46 
(Declarations of Interests) confirming that he had declared his interest because he 
was a member of the Co-operative Party and not, as the minute may have implied, a 
member of the Dale Co-operative Society.

DECIDED – That subject to the above mentioned amendment, the Minutes of 
the meeting of Rochdale Township Committee held 25th November 2015 be 
approved, as a correct record. 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION & RESOURCES SUB-COMMITTEE
67 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township 
Action and Resources Committee (Delegated Sub-Committee), held 1st 
December 2015, be noted.

OFF-STREET PARKING TARIFF AND OPERATIONAL HOURS ORDER
68 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods that sought retrospective approval for the Highways Service to 
promote, advertise and implement a traffic order to regulate the use of the Rochdale 
town centre Off-Street car parks.

The purpose of the Director’s report was to inform the Committee of the objections 
and their contents so that they can make a decision to approve or reject the 
proposals following consideration of the objections and responses. The report 
outlined a proposal for the introduction of a traffic order to regulate the use of the 
Rochdale town centre off-street car parks, which had been advertised in the local 
media 11th November 2015. Objections have been received to the proposals and the 

Page 5



Highways and Engineering Service’s response to these objections were detailed in 
the Committee’s report.
 
Under the proposals detailed in the Committee’s report Rochdale’s town centre Off-
street parking places (except those designated to ‘permit holders only’) will continue 
to be free for the first three hours. To prevent motorists moving between car parks, 
thus obtaining additional free hours, the ‘town centre’ Off-street car parks have been 
clustered together to form one large zoned car park. Those car parks being: Milton 
Street West which becomes Town Centre Car Park Zone A; Penn Street Lower which 
becomes Town Centre Car Park Zone B; Baillie Street which becomes Town Centre 
Car Park Zone C; Penn Street Upper which becomes Town Centre Car Park Zone D. 
These car parks will be renamed ‘Town Centre Car Park’ zones A, B, C and D and 
the Order will specifically prevent a vehicle moving from one zone to another. It 
would therefore become an offence to obtain more than one free 3 hour ticket in the 
same charging period. Milton Street East will be designated a ‘Permit Only’ car park 
and hence a motorist will need to first purchase a RBC permit to use the car park. 
Enforcement of the Traffic Orders will be by Rochdale Borough Council’s Civil 
Enforcement Officers.

Alternatives considered: not changing the existing tariff order Off-Street Parking Tariff 
and Operational Hours Order. 

DECIDED – That (1) the Committee notes the report;
(2) the Committee retrospectively approves the promotion of the Order, 

pursuant to paragraphs 3.6 and 5.1 of the submitted report;
(3) the committee approve funding for the promotion of this Order to be 

financed via the Corporate Highways Budget, rather than via the Rochdale 
Township Fund;

(4) the Committee having given due consideration to all of the objections 
to the Order, notes the responses issued thereon by the Director of 
Neighbourhoods and determines to overrule the objections that have been 
received and thereby authorises the Director of Neighbourhoods to proceed 
with the implementation of the Order.
Eligible for Cal-in: Yes

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS LAND ADJACENT TO SPOTLAND LIBRARY, INGS 
LANE, ROCHDALE
69 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods that sought Members approval for the release of the land adjacent 
to Spotland Library, Ings Lane, Rochdale for disposal as set out in the plan that was 
attached to the submitted report at Appendix 1.

The land in question was approximately 0.05 hectares in size and under the Unitary 
Development Plan it was classed as being within the Defined Urban Area.  The site is 
located on Ings Lane next to the junction with Edenfield Road. The site is surrounded 
by residential development to the east, west and south and it is adjacent to Spotland 
Library. The site comprises an undeveloped greenfield land, which has historically 
been managed as part of the library site, but which adds no intrinsic value to the 
library. Consultation with the Council’s Planning Service had highlighted that 
residential development of this site would be supported.

Alternatives considered: to retain this site in its current use. Retention of this site, it 
was felt, would not secure capital receipts or beneficial development, nor reduce the 
Council’s financial and/or environmental liabilities. In its current condition, the site 
adds little to the recreational or visual amenity of the area. The site is currently 

Page 6



vacant. Retaining this site in its current use carries the risk of liabilities such as fly-
tipping, anti-social behaviour and regular or ad hoc maintenance obligations.

In considering the report Members of the Committee gave due consideration to the 
comments that Mr Faulkner and Mrs Walton had made during the Open Forum 
Session of this meeting in relation to this particular agenda item.

DECIDED – That (1) the land is declared surplus to the Council’s requirements 
and released for disposal;

(2) the Head of Legal Services be requested to carry out the legal work 
in connection with the disposal;

(3) the purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs.
Eligible for Call-in: yes.

DISPOSAL OF LAND - 180 RUGBY ROAD, ROCHDALE
70 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods that sought Members approval to the disposal of the former 
Children’s Home at 180 Rugby Road, Rochdale.

The Committee were advised that the former Children’s Home at Rugby Road has 
been declared surplus to operational requirements.  The Council’s Children’s Social 
Care Services had made changes to the way the services are delivered to Children 
with Disabilities in the borough which has led to the closure of the respite care facility. 
The Service had made changes to the way services are delivered at Rugby Road.  
The building and location of the respite care facility are more suitable for the delivery 
of the revised service and there are advantages to the service being co-located 
alongside the outreach service that operates from the respite care facility site  

The Respite Care Service will be jointly delivered with Oldham Council and had 
ceased operations at its current location in December 2015.  It was therefore 
proposed that the Rugby Road service will relocate as soon as possible thereafter.  
This would then leave the Rugby Road premises surplus to operational needs.

Alternatives considered: the service could remain at Rugby Road and the Respite 
Care premises could be sold.  The whole of the Respite Care premises however 
would not be available as there were no plans to relocate the Outreach Service. This 
would make the asset difficult to sell.

DECIDED – That (1) the Committee approves the disposal of the asset;
(2) the Head of Legal and Governance Reform be authorised to carry out 

the legal work in connection with the disposal;
(3) the Purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs.

Eligible for Call-in: Yes.

DENEHURST PARK MASTERPLAN
71 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods that updated members on the draft Denehurst Park Masterplan and 
sought the Committee’s approval to formally adopt the Plan.

The Committee were reminded that the Denehurst Cemetery Extension was opened 
in September 2015 being built on part of Denehurst Park. The Council had previously 
agreed a sum of £372,950 for improvements to the remainder of the Park. 
Consultations with the community and other stakeholders (such as Friends of 
Denehurst Park, the Council’s Community Safety Team and Greater Manchester 

Page 7



Police had been undertaken resulting in a revised draft masterplan that was 
submitted to the Committee and that was detailed in the Committee’s report.

Alternatives considered: None.

DECIDED – That the Committee approves the Masterplan as detailed in the 
submitted report, subject to any minor amendments as the scheme develops.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes.

PROPOSED EXTENSION TO ROCHDALE CANAL SITE OF BIOLOGICAL 
IMPORTANCE (SBI)
72 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy that informed 
Members of proposed changes to a Site of Biological Importance (SBI) in Rochdale 
Township, namely Rochdale Canal SBI. Members were asked to approve the 
changes and the consequent update of the local SBI register for planning purposes.

The recommendations were presented as the proposed changes would ensure that 
the SBI covers the new section of the Rochdale Canal created as part of the Canal’s 
restoration, and this will help to protect the biodiversity value of the canal, as will the 
addition of a section of woodland at Dicken Green, Rochdale.

The Council had recently received a report form the Greater Manchester Ecology 
Unit in respect of their 2014 SBI review. In it the following changes to the Rochdale 
Canal SBI in Rochdale Township were proposed: Inclusion of a new spur of the 
Rochdale Canal at Trub, Castleton (where the canal goes under the M62 motorway) 
in the SBI; and the addition into the SBI of some woodland alongside the canal at 
Dicken Green, Rochdale. These changes to the SBI would help to protect the 
biodiversity of the Canal, because they would be taken into account in planning 
decisions which may affect the Canal.

Alternatives considered: to not make the changes to the SBI which the Greater 
Manchester Ecology Unit are recommending would leave important habitats 
vulnerable, especially because they would not be taken into account in decision 
making in respect of planning applications which may affect them.

DECIDED – That the Township Committee approves the change to the SBI and 
the SBI register as detailed in the submitted report, for planning purposes.
Eligible for call-in: Yes

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP - HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 2016 - 
2018
73 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which requested that Members consider approving the 
recommended 2016-2018 highway maintenance programme for Rochdale Township.

The recommended Highways Maintenance Capital Programme had been compiled 
based on network condition data and visual site inspections by engineers. The 
programme aims to address the highest priority sites within Rochdale Township with 
the most suitable carriageway or footway remedial works within the allocated capital 
budget. Members were advised that that this is a two year programme with 
opportunities for cost savings and flexibility around delivery in order to deal with the 
constraints with working on a live highway network.

Following agreement of the work programmes, delivery of the schemes is being co-
ordinated with the street lighting PFI programme, other highways schemes, planning 

Page 8



applications, other RMBC schemes and third party utility works. Should it become 
necessary to delay or postpone a scheme in the agreed programme, this would be 
done by the Council’s Head of Highways Service following consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder and the Chair of the Township Committee.

Appendix A of the submitted report provided details of the proposed schemes for 
Rochdale Township’s Highway Capital Programme 2016 - 2018.

A budget of approximately £2.4 million is available, for the Borough, for the Highway 
Capital Programme over the two year period, 2016 - 2018. Confirmation of the final 
budget allocation will be from the Department for Transport. The budget is to be 
allocated between the Borough’s four Townships based on population size and 
Rochdale Township will receive an allocation of £1,073,000 (44%). This value may 
change dependant on the final allocation from the Department for Transport.

DECIDED – that (1) the proposed Rochdale Township Highway Maintenance 
Capital Programme to be delivered in 2016 - 2018 be approved;

(2) Where events external to the Council require rapid response or 
agreement in principle, the Committee authorises the Highways Services 
Manager to vary the programme in consultation with the Portfolio Holder and 
the Chair of the relevant Township Committee.
Eligible for call in – yes.

GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD)
74 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy 
which informed Members that the Guidelines and Standards for Residential 
Development Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) Consultation Draft has been 
approved for consultation by Cabinet and invited any comments that Members may 
have on the document at this stage.

DECIDED – that the Guidelines and Standards for Residential Development 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) be noted.
Eligible for call in – no.

Page 9



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 17th November 2015

PRESENT:  Councillor Brosnan (in the Chair); Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Duckworth, 
James Gartside, Linden, Rashid, Wazir and Zaheer (substituting for Councillor 
Iftikhar Ahmed).

OFFICERS: D. Ripa (Economy Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Brett, Councillor Jane Gartside, Councillor 
Winkler and 30 members of the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed and Sheerin.
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
55 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
56 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub-Committee held on 27th October 2015, be approved as a correct 
record.

OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE ERECTION OF DWELLINGS - 
SPOTLAND ROAD, ROCHDALE
57 The Director of Environment presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/00463/HYBR), which was a full application for conversion of a 
mill building into 22 flats, including the demolition of all the remaining buildings and 
the partial demolition of the mill chimney and which was also an outline planning 
application (including access) for the erection of 80 dwellings at the former Dexine 
Rubber Mill Co. Ltd, Spotland Road, Rochdale.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr. C. Faulkner and Mr. N. Morrell who 
addressed Members on behalf of the objectors to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr. Healey, who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the applicants.

DECIDED – That the Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that this 
Sub-Committee is minded to grant planning permission, subject to condition 6 
being amended to require the chimney to be retained at no less than 10 metres 
in height. 

CHANGE OF USE - TWEEDALE STREET, ROCHDALE
58 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/00639/FUL), which was a for a change of use of development 
consisting of three ground floor retail units and six self-contained apartments over the 
first and second floors, at 51 – 63 Tweedale Street, Rochdale..

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mrs. Biaz who addressed Members on 
behalf of the objectors to the application.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr. U. Anjum and Mr. P. Clarke, who 
addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of the applicants.

DECIDED – That the application for planning permission be refused.

CHANGE OF USE - CHURCH ROAD, HEYWOOD
59 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed planning 
application 15/01024/FUL for a change of use to land to form 12 parking spaces 
(part-retrospective application), being a resubmission of application 15/00253/FUL at 
land opposite White Ash Terrace, Church Road, Heywood, Rochdale. In presenting 
the report the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken by Members of the 
Sub-Committee.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Ms. J. Cook who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the objectors to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Ms. J. Johnston, who addressed the 
Sub-Committee on behalf of the applicants.   

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Councillor Winkler, a Norden Ward 
Member, who addressed the Sub-Committee with regard to this application

DECIDED – That planning permission be refused. 

TREE WORKS - BROOKLANDS COURT, ROCHDALE
60 The Director of Economy presented a report that detailed an application 
(15/01201/WTTPO), to fell one Beech tree and one Sycamore tree also to crown and 
lift up to 25% of trees which are overhanging on to the road within a group G1 of Tree 
Preservation Order No. 26 at 2 Brooklands Court, Rochdale.

DECIDED – That the application to fell one Beech tree and one Sycamore tree; 
to crown and lift up to 25% of trees which are overhanging on to the road 
within a group G1 of Tree Preservation Order No. 26 at 2 Brooklands Court, 
Rochdale.

NB: In accordance with Council procedure rules Councillor Brosnan requested her 
vote against the decision be recorded.

PLANNING APPEALS
61 DECIDED – That the planning appeals be noted.

Page 11



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 8th December 2015

PRESENT:  Councillor L Brosnan (In the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Shakil Ahmed, Duckworth, James Gartside, Linden, Rashid and Sheerin

OFFICERS: R Coley (Economy Directorate) and C Denyer (Resources 
Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor Jane Gartside and 12 members of the 
public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Wazir

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
62 There were no declarations of interest.

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY BUILDING COMPRISING OF 2 RETAIL 
UNITS AT GROUND FLOOR AND OFFICES AT FIRST FLOOR ON LAND 
TO SIDE OF 90, DURHAM STREET, ROCHDALE
63 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/00521/FUL for the erection of a two storey building comprising of two retail units 
at ground floor and offices at first floor on land to the side of 90, Durham Street, 
Rochdale OL11 1JZ.

In introducing the application the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee earlier in the day.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr A Chorlton, who addressed the 
Committee on behalf of the applicant.

DECIDED – that (1) planning permission be approved subject to the conditions 
detailed in the submitted report;

(2) an additional condition for details of the arrangements for refuse 
storage to be submitted and agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF 11 DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED 
ACCESS, PARKING, LANDSCAPING, FOOTPATH LINK AND OPEN 
SPACE ON LAND OFF WOODLEA CHASE/ STOCK CLOSE/ FLETTON 
CLOSE ROCHDALE
64 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/00725/FUL for a residential development of 11 dwellings with associated access, 
parking, landscaping, footpath link and open space (Resubmission of 14/01309/FUL) 
on land off Woodlea Chase/ Stock Close/ Fletton Close Rochdale.

In introducing the application the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee earlier in the day.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr A White who addressed the 
Committee objecting to the application.

Public Document Pack

Page 12



The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr P Simpson, who addressed the 
Committee on behalf of the applicant. 

That planning permission be approved subject to the conditions detailed in the 
submitted report and:
(i) The variation of the existing Section 106 (pursuant to planning 
permission 98/D35832) in order to secure:
a) The provision and maintenance of recreational open space in accordance 
with the Council’s open space policies, with local open space being provided 
on-site and off-site at the former railway line which lies to the north of Bentley 
Street. The contribution towards formal sports provision to be provided off-
site, at Lenny Barn sports pitches;
(ii) That the Council enter into an agreement under the provisions of 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate 
legislation with regard to the matters set out above;
(iii) The Head of Planning being authorised to issue the decision notice on 
completion of the Section 106 Agreement

ERECTION OF NEW DWELLINGHOUSE ON LAND AT  BAMFORD OLD 
HALL OFF  BURY AND ROCHDALE OLD ROAD.
65 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/01001/FUL for the erection of a new dwellinghouse on land at Bamford Old Hall, 
Off Bury and Rochdale Old Road. 

In introducing the application the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee earlier in the day and to photographs circulated to 
the Members prior to the meeting by the objectors to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr S Cresswell who addressed the Sub-
Committee in objection to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the agents for the applicant who 
addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Councillor Jane Gartside, a Bamford 
Ward Member, who addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That the application be referred to Planning and Licensing 
Committee for a decision without a recommendation being made by the Sub 
Committee due to the particular exceptional circumstances of this case and 
that Officers be requested to contact Historic England to seek the formal 
designation of the icehouse on the application site as a listed building.

APPLICATION TO REMOVE 11 TREES WITHIN AREAS A1, A3, A4 AND 
A8 OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 042 AT THE  ROCHDALE AND 
DISTRICT ANGLING SOCIETY, TROWS LANE, ROCHDALE
66 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/01181/WTTPO seeking consent to remove 11 trees within areas A1, A3, A4 and 
A8 of Tree Preservation Order No. 042 at the Rochdale and District Angling Society, 
Trows Lane, Rochdale, OL11 2UE.

Page 13



DECIDED- That authorisation to remove 11 trees within areas A1, A3, A4 and 
A8 of Tree Preservation Order No. 042 at the Rochdale And District Angling 
Society, Trows Lane, Rochdale, OL11 2UE be approved subject to the 
conditions in the submitted report. 

ALTERATION OF THE CURRENT GARDEN LEVEL  TOGETHER WITH A 
NEW RETAINING WALL AND NEW FENCE WITH ADDITIONAL TRELLIS 
TO REAR OF GARDEN AT 9, ROSSMERE AVENUE, ROCHDALE
67 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/01219/HOUS for the alteration of the current garden level to match the level of a 
large proportion of the existing garden together with a new retaining wall and new 
2.2m high fence with additional 0.3m trellis to rear of garden - part retrospective 
(Resubmission of 15/00420/HOUS) at 9, Rossmere Avenue Rochdale, OL11 4BT  

In introducing the application the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee earlier in the day and further letters of objection 
together with photographs of the application site circulated to the Members of the 
Committee prior to the meeting.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr J Schofield who addressed the Sub-
Committee in objection to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr A Ahmed the applicant who 
addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – that planning permission be approved subject to the conditions 
detailed in the submitted report with the deletion of the unnecessary time limit 
for implementation condition as works had already commenced.

SUBMITTED PLANNING APPEALS
68 The Director of Economy reported that the following planning appeals had 
been submitted:

None 
 
The Director of Economy reported that the Planning Inspectorate had dismissed the 
following planning appeals
 
None 
 
The Director of Economy reported that the Planning Inspectorate had been allowed

15/00761/HOUS – 16 Craiglands, Rochdale - Proposed two storey side extension 
(resubmission 15/00461/HOUS) – Delegated Decision (Balderstone and Kirkholt 
Ward

DECIDED – That the planning appeals be noted.

Page 14



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 26th January 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Brosnan (in the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Shakil Ahmed, Duckworth, James Gartside, Linden, Rashid, Sheerin and Wazir

OFFICERS: R Coley (Economy Directorate) and S Shahid (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor O’Neill, Zaman and approximately 22 members 
of the public.  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:  None.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
69 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
70 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meetings of Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub-Committee held on 17th November 2015 and 8th December 2015, 
be approved as a correct record.

SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AT 44 MOSS AVENUE, ROCHDALE, OL16 
4AA.
71 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/01135/HOUS) which was for a single storey rear extension at 
44 Moss Avenue, Rochdale, OL16 4AA. 

In introducing the application the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Ms H Bowder who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the applicant, objecting to the application. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr M Zohaib, an agent for the applicant, 
who addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of the applicant. 

DECIDED – That the application for planning permission be refused. 

FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION TO CREATE A TWO STOREY DWELLING AND NEW 
FRONT AND REAR EXTENSIONS AT 26 MARIGOLD STREET, ROCHDALE, 
OL11 1RJ.
72 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/01221/HOUS) which was for a first floor extension to create a 
two storey dwelling and new front and rear extensions at 26 Marigold Street, 
Rochdale, OL11 1RJ. 

There were no objectors present at the Sub-Committee meeting. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Zohaib who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the applicant. 

Public Document Pack

Page 15



DECIDED – The applicant withdrew the planning application from consideration 
before a resolution was made.  

APPLICATION FOR WORKS TO THE TREES WITHIN TREE PRESERVATION 
ORDER T193, GROUP A2, FOR THE FELLING OF FOUR PINE TREES, BRANCH 
REMOVAL OF TWO  PINE TREES AND ONE CROWN THINNING OF UP TO 20% 
OF A BEECH TREE AT 7 HILKIRK DRIVE, ROCHDALE, OL12 7HD.
73 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/01227/WTTPO) which was for works to trees within Tree 
Preservation Order T193, Group A2, for the felling of four Pine Trees, branch 
removal of two Pine Trees and one crown thinning of up to 20% of a Beech tree at 7 
Hillkirk Drive, Rochdale, OL12 7HD. 

DECIDED – That authorisation for works to trees within Tree Preservation 
Order T193, Group A2, for the felling of four Pine trees, branch removal of two 
Pine trees and one crown thinning of up to 20% of a Beech tree be approved, 
subject to the following conditions updatd from the submitted report:-

No more than 20% of the canopy shall be removed from the Beech tree 
identified on the plan as T2b.  

Only the two individual branches identified with a red arrow on Photograph A 
appended to this decision notice shall be removed from the Pine trees labelled 
T5a and T6a on Photograph A. 

NB: In accordance with Council procedure rules, Councillor Brosnan requested her 
vote against the decision be recorded. 

TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION, FRONT DORMER EXTENSION AND A 
FRONT PORCH (PART RETROSPECTIVE) AT 83 HEIGHTS AVENUE, 
ROCHDALE, OL12 6JH.
74 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/01305/HOUS) which was for a two storey rear extension, 
front dormer extension and a front porch (part retrospective) at 83 Heights Avenue, 
Rochdale, OL12 6JH. 

The Sub- Committee considered the views of Mrs H Andrews who addressed the 
Sub-Committee in objection to the application. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant, Mr A Hussain who 
addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That the application for planning permission be refused. 

FIRST FLOOR, SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION (RE-SUBMISSION 15/00832/FUL) 
AT HEALEY SURGERY, WHITWORTH ROAD, ROCHDALE, OL12 0SN.
75 The Director of Environment presented a report which detailed a planning a 
planning application (number 15/01362/FUL) which was for a first floor side and rear 
extension (re-submission 1500832/FUL) at Healey Surgery, Whitworth Road, 
Rochdale, OL12 0SN. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Ms E Gillatt who addressed the Sub-
Committee in objection to the application. 

Page 16



The Sub-Committee considered the views of P Clark who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the applicant. 

The Sub-Committee also considered the views of Healey Ward Member, Councillor 
O’Neill who addressed the Sub-Committee in objection to the application. 

DECIDED – That the application for planning permission be approved, subject 
to the conditions detailed in the submitted report. 

SINGLE STOREY FRONT EXTENSION, FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSION AND A 
LOFT CONVERSION WITH ROOF LIGHTS (RE-SUBMISSION) AT 77 TWEEDALE 
STREET, ROCHDALE, OL11 3TZ.
76 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/01390/HOUS) for a single storey front extension, first floor 
rear extension and a loft conversion with roof lights (re-submission) at 77 Tweedale 
Street, Rochdale, OL11 3TZ. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Zohaib who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the applicant in relation to the application. 

DECIDED – That the application be referred to the Planning and Licensing 
Committee under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and Planning and 
Licensing Committee be advised that this Sub-Committee was minded to grant 
planning permission. 

NB: In accordance with Council procedure rules, Councillor Linden requested his 
vote against the decision be recorded. 

APPLICATION TO REMOVE ONE OAK TREE, SUBJECT TO TREE 
PRESERVATION ORDER NUMBER 36 ON THE LAND AT THE REAR OF 2 
MARLAND OLD ROAD, ROCHDALE, OL11 4QY.
77 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application (number 15/01429/WTTPO) to remove one Oak tree, subject to Tree 
Preservation Order Number 36 on the Land at the rear of 2 Marland Old Road, 
Rochdale, OL11 4QY.

There were no objectors present at the Sub-Committee meeting. 

The applicant was not present to make representations in relation to the application 
at the Sub-Committee meeting. 

DECIDED – That authorisation to remove one Oak tree, subject to Tree 
Preservation Order Number 36 on the Land at the rear of 2 Marland Old Road, 
Rochdale, OL11 4QY, be approved subject to the conditions detailed in the 
submitted report.  

NB: In accordance with Council procedure rules, Councillor Brosnan requested her 
vote against the decision be recorded. 

PLANNING APPEALS.
78 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed current planning 
appeals in the Township.

DECIDED – That the report be noted. 

Page 17



1

 

Subject: Neighbourhood Planning – 
Designation of the proposed Rooley Moor 
Neighbourhood Area and Forum

Status: For Decision

Report to: Rochdale Township

Cabinet Member: Councillor Neil Emmott, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate and Regulation

Date: 9 March 2016
 

Report of: John Searle 

Author Email:    wayne.poole@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Wayne Poole

Tel: 01706 924364

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

Key Decision: 

1 Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform Members that consultation has taken place on the applications for the 
designation of a Neighbourhood Area and a Neighbourhood Forum for Rooley Moor.  For 
information a map of the area is included at Appendix 1 along with a list of the Forum 
members at Appendix 2.

1.2 To seek Township approval to designate the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area and 
Forum to support future preparation of the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Plan.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That Township Committee approves the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area and Forum for 
designation.

2.2 If approved, the area and forum designation should be publicised on the Council’s website 
as soon as possible including a statement containing the name of the designated 
neighbourhood forum, a copy of the written constitution, name of the neighbourhood area 
and the name of at least one member on the forum.

3 Background

3.1 The 2011 Localism Act introduced new powers for local communities to become involved 
in planning matters and specifically relates to the production of Neighbourhood Plans, 
Neighbourhood Development Orders (NDO) and Community Right to Build Orders 
(CRtB). 

3.2 The Act seeks to hand more power to local communities in influencing how their local area 
develops. By providing a statutory framework, the Act opens up the opportunity for 
residents to create community-led plans (or neighbourhood plans) to meet local 
aspirations. However, the need for neighbourhood plans must be both positive and in 
conformity with local strategic planning policies. In addition, any neighbourhood plan must 
be ‘pro-development’ and cannot be used to stop development already allocated or 
permitted, or propose less development than the Local Plan. The first stage of this - the 
Core Strategy - is currently being prepared and should be adopted in 2016. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



2

3.3 Neighbourhood development plans or orders do not take effect unless there is a majority 
of support in a referendum of the neighbourhood. They also have to meet a number of 
conditions before they can be put to a community referendum and legally come into force. 
They must:

 have regard to national planning policy;
 be in general conformity with strategic policies in the development plan for the 

local area (i.e. such as the Core Strategy); and
 be compatible with the European Union’s obligations and human rights 

requirements.

3.4 A neighbourhood development plan may contain a range of policies or proposals for land 
use development that will be used as part of determining decisions on planning 
applications. It can also grant planning permission through neighbourhood development 
orders for a particular, defined type of development in an area or a specific site. We would 
expect neighbourhood development orders to be part of neighbourhood development 
plans. 

3.5 The new process requires decisions to be made by the council at various stages in order 
to designate an area and forum for the preparation of a neighbourhood development plan. 

3.6 The stages for producing a neighbourhood development plan are outlined below:

Stage 1: An application for a neighbourhood area is made to the Council for 
determination.  The Council must ensure that designated neighbourhood areas do not 
overlap, as no more than one neighbourhood development plan may be made for a 
particular designated neighbourhood area.  The application to designate the Rooley Moor 
neighbourhood area was considered by members at the Rochdale Township meeting on 
16 September 2015.

Stage 2: Following the designation of a neighbourhood area, an additional application is 
made by an appropriately constituted organisation to be designated as the neighbourhood 
forum. There are specific criteria that a designated neighbourhood forum must have a 
minimum membership requirement of 21 people and that they are appropriately 
representative of stakeholders living or working within the plan area.  The application to 
designate the Rooley Moor neighbourhood forum was considered by members at the 
Rochdale Township meeting on 16 September 2015.

This is the stage we are currently at.

Stage 3: Once the neighbourhood area is designated, the neighbourhood forum prepares 
the draft neighbourhood development plan or order. This stage includes consultation with 
residents and businesses within the plan area, and areas that may be affected by the 
plan.

Stage 4: The Council checks conformity with the basic procedural requirements, such as 
conformity with planning policy, the Local Plan, the National Planning Policy Framework, 
and legislation, as appropriate.

Stage 5: If the neighbourhood development plan is considered to be in conformity with 
policy and legislation, the Council appoints an independent examiner to carry out an 
examination on the plan, including the possibility for a hearing of oral evidence. This check 
further ensures the plan conforms to policy, legislation and that it is not in breach of EU 
legislation.

Stage 6: Subject to the examiner’s recommendations, the Council will decide the 
appropriate course of action. If the examination finds that the neighbourhood development 

Page 19



3

plan satisfies the requirements, the Council must plan, publicise and hold a referendum to 
ascertain whether there is support for the plan. If more than 50% of those voting in the 
referendum vote ‘yes’, then the Council will bring the plan into force.  If the plan is not fit to 
proceed to referendum, or is rejected at a referendum, the process must start again.

3.7 Although, it is recommended that stages 1 and 2 are done sequentially, the Council in this 
instance decided that it was more appropriate to accept applications for the 
neighbourhood area and forum at the same time. This was done to save time and 
resources, as well as efficiently using the democratic reporting process and Members’ 
time.  This did not compromise or impact on the statutory publication period of six weeks, 
and it is considered that the community still had enough time to consider the proposals. 

 
Consultation undertaken

3.8 The Council has undertaken public consultation to publicise the proposed Rooley Moor 
neighbourhood area and forum applications for a period of six weeks between 16 October 
and 30 November 2015.  The consultation undertaken by the Council was sufficient to 
cover the duties imposed under the Localism Act and The Neighbourhood Planning 
(General) Regulations 2012.

Responses to the Consultation

3.9 There were no responses received to the consultation on the proposed neighbourhood 
area and forum applications.  Whilst it would have been useful to receive some responses 
the lack of any objections to the proposed area and forum supports the Council’s original 
view that the applications have met the requirements set out within the regulations.    

Next Steps

3.10  If it is deemed appropriate to designate the proposed neighbourhood area and forum for a 
prospective Rooley Moor  Neighbourhood Development Plan, then the designation will be 
publicised on the Council’s website to make residents, businesses and other interested 
parties aware of it.  Thereafter, the process of preparing the neighbourhood plan can 
begin.  This stage includes consultation with residents and businesses within the plan 
area, and areas that may be affected by the plan.  

3.11 The neighbourhood development plan will set out a vision for the designated 
neighbourhood area and include planning policies for the use and development of land at 
a local rather than strategic level. The plan should be compatible with national policies and 
the policies in the Local Plan. It should be focused on guiding development rather than 
stopping it. If adopted it will become a statutory plan and be used in making decisions on 
planning applications.

What is the council’s role in neighbourhood planning?

3.12 Neighbourhood development plans are prepared by the community but there are a 
number of things the Council has a duty to do. It must:

• consult on and make a decision on the boundary of the area to be designated the 
neighbourhood area for the purposes of the neighbourhood development plan;

• consult on and determine applications for designation of a neighbourhood forum;
• organise the check by an independent examiner into a neighbourhood 

development plan;
• organise the referendum into the plan; and
• if supported, resolve to adopt the neighbourhood development Plan and to bring it 

into force on a particular date.

3.13 The Council also has a duty to provide technical advice and support to those producing a 
Neighbourhood Development Plan.

Page 20



4

Alternatives considered

3.14 If Members decide to refuse to designate a neighbourhood area and forum, the 
Neighbourhood Planning Regulations require that the Council publishes a statement of the 
reasons for making that decision. In the event of such a decision, it is therefore important 
that the Township Committee sets out clear reasons why the decision has been made.

3.15 Such a decision would also be likely to delay the production of the Neighbourhood Plan 
and the ability for members of the local community to come together to create a 
neighbourhood area and forum.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from the recommendations within this 
report or for the Council’s involvement in the process at this stage.  Going forward, the 
costs to the Council will depend on the nature and scale of help and support provided and 
the ability of community groups to contribute financially to the process or obtain further 
funding to support the plan preparation.  The duty to support does not require the Council 
to give financial assistance to a designated neighbourhood forum unless it chooses to do 
so.  Funding is available to authorities to cover the costs of the independent check and 
referendum.   It is not possible to provide an authoritative estimate of the total costs 
involved in preparing a plan.  However, if the Council decides to provide financial 
assistance then a separate report will be provided to agree to this.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The requirements for establishing a Neighbourhood Plan, including the administrative 
functions of local authorities are established in the Localism Act 2011. The 
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 set out the procedures for 
designating an organisation or body as a Neighbourhood Forum and for designating a 
Neighbourhood Area. The 2012 regulations have been amended by the Neighbourhood 
Planning (General) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 which came into force on 9 February 
2015. It is considered that the request received from the Rooley Moor Forum is valid and 
meets the legal requirements of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
as amended by the 2015 Regulations.  Further reports would need to be presented to 
Members on the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Development Plan e.g. on a draft 
Neighbourhood Plan.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 Much of the work associated with plan preparation is to be undertaken by the local 
community rather than the Council.  However, it is clear that this process will require some 
staff input from Planning, Legal, Township and other services in the event of the 
designation of the proposed area boundary as the neighbourhood area for a prospective 
Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Development Plan.  The Council is presently at an advanced 
stage in the preparation of the Core Strategy and has agreed to work collectively with 
AGMA and the other nine Greater Manchester Districts to prepare a new development 
plan covering housing and employment land and infrastructure – the GM Spatial 
Framework.  At this stage, however it is expected that work to support the Neighbourhood 
Plan can be met from within existing staffing resources. Should this position change 
appropriate consultation will be undertaken with relevant staff(s).

7 Corporate and Township Priorities

7.1 Any neighbourhood development plan must take into account and reflect the priorities and 
policies in other local plan guidance and strategies for the Council.  In preparing a 

Page 21



5

neighbourhood development plan consideration must be given to current Township 
priorities at the time of preparation.  This will clearly be critical to the Council’s acceptance 
of any neighbourhood development plan for Rooley Moor neighbourhood area.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk considerations 
as set out below:

• Local communities will be required to show that they are able to accommodate 
requirements for growth and development in their areas in accordance with the 
Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. If they simply seek to 
prevent development, current Guidance indicates the Plan will not succeed at an 
independent examination.

• Resourcing neighbourhood planning forums and neighbourhood planning areas is 
likely to be an issue faced by communities and authorities.  It is noted and would 
be expected that much of the work and resource is expected to be undertaken by 
the designated neighbourhood forum.

• Based on national feedback elsewhere, the preparation of neighbourhood 
development plans appears to be a lengthy and resource intensive process. 
Further reports setting out any resource or risk implications would need to be 
presented to Township for consideration.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report at this stage of the process.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report at this stage of the 
process therefore an Equalities Impact Assessment has not been completed, in this 
instance.  However, the public consultation throughout the Neighbourhood Plan process 
will look to raise awareness and interest.  It will look to invite comments from the general 
public to get involved in the process.  Membership for the Forum is open to anyone living 
and working in the area, and elected members for the area.

When work has advanced of on draft neighbourhood plan an Equalities Impact 
Assessment will be need to be completed to demonstrate how it would impact on different 
groups within the community.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 22



6

Appendix 1 - Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area Map

.

Page 23



Appendix 2 - Membership of proposed Neighbourhood Forum

A minimum of 21 members is required, each of whom must live, work or carry out business in 
the neighbourhood area, or be an elected member (whose area falls within the neighbourhood 
area).

The Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012 require a Neighbourhood Forum to comprise 
a good cross section of the Neighbourhood Area so as to be considered representative.

Interest in Neighbourhood Area
Name Lives in 

area
Business 
in area

Works 
in area

Cllr or 
MP

1 Alan Rawsterne Y N N
2 F Healey Y Y N
3 J Newcombe Y N N
4 A Meek Y N Y
5 N Marr Y N N
6 J Lord Y N N
7 J Holt N N N
8 M Stirzaker Y N N
9 C Stirzaker Y N N
10 H Moore Y N N
11 A Moore Y N N
12 C Biant N N N Y
13 R Thorniley N N N
14 P Howard Y N N
15 M Morgan Y N N
16 S Morgan Y N N
17 W Mcghee Y N N
18 D Ireland Y N N
19 D Ireland Y N N
20 D McGhee Y N N
21 G Fitton Y N N
22 I Pope N N N
23 C Thomas N N N
24 C T Perkins Y N N
25 N Green Y N N
26 D Madgin Y N N
27 G Ogden Y N N
28 J Ogden Y N N

Page 24

mailto:cecile.biant@rochdale.gov.uk


 

Subject: Disposal of land at Cut 
Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift 
Road, Rochdale

Status: For Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Councillor Jacqueline Beswick

Date: Wednesday, 9 March 2016
 

Wards: Norden & Bamford 

Report of: Director of Economy

Author Email:    
mohammed.nadeem@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Mohammed Nadeem

Tel: Tel: 01706 924170

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision: No

1 Purpose of the report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for a recommended course of action 
for two plots of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, Rochdale and Swift Road, 
Rochdale as shown on the attached plans at Appendix 1 and 2  

2 Recommendations

2.1 In respect of the land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road it is recommended that:

2.1.1 In the event the Village Green application is successful the site becomes a 
legally registered village green and the Council enters into negotiations with members 
of the local community with a view to transferring the freehold or leasehold interest in 
the site as a Community Asset.

2.1.2 In the event the Village Green application is unsuccessful the land is offered for 
sale on the open market for residential development.   

2.1.3 Alternatively, members could decide to adopt one of the other options set out 
and discussed in paragraph 3.16 of this report.

2.2 In respect of the land at Swift Road, it is recommended that:

2.2.1 In the event the Village Green application is successful the site becomes a 
legally registered village green and the Council enters into negotiations with members 
of the local community with a view to transferring the freehold or leasehold interest in 
the site as a Community Asset.

2.2.2In the event the Village Green application is unsuccessful the land is offered for 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



sale on the open market for residential development.   

2.2.3 Alternatively, members could decide to adopt one of the other options set out 
and discussed in paragraph 3.16 of this report.

Reasons for the Recommendations

2.3 The recommendations are suggested for the following reasons:

2.3.1 There are no legal impediments to the Council’s ability to dispose of the sites 
regardless of whether the applications for village green status are successful.  Their 
disposal would be consistent with the Council’s corporate priorities, reducing its asset 
base and associated costs and, in the case of sale for development, obtaining capital 
receipts.

2.3.2 The planning view is that development is permissible on both sites.

2.3.3 As things stand registration of the sites as village greens would prevent the 
development of the sites. However, village green legislation may change in the future 
and Community Asset Transfer would give the local communities a further opportunity 
to permanently safeguard the future of the sites in accordance with their priorities, and 
to invest in the sites to enhance their value to the local communities.

3 Background

Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, Rochdale

3.1 The Rochdale Township Committee at its meeting on 05 November 2014 approved 
the release for disposal of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, Rochdale, and shown 
edged red on the attached plan in Appendix 1. 

3.2 The decision was subsequently called-in and considered by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee on 21 January 2015.  The Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
decided to refer this matter back to Township Committee as O&S Members felt that 
Township had not fully considered all matters when coming to its decision. Local 
residents have argued that the land is a well-used area of open space and should not 
be lost to the community.

3.3 On Wednesday 4 March 2015 at the Rochdale Township Committee meeting the 
matter was referred to again and it was decided that consideration would be deferred 
to a future meeting pending the outcome of a site visit by the Chair and Vice Chair of 
Rochdale Township Committee, Norden Ward Councillors, appropriate officers of the 
Council and local community representatives. 

3.4 On Monday 23rd March 2015 members of the local community submitted an 
application for the registration of the whole of the land shown on the Plan as a Village 
Green. The objection period has now passed.   

3.5 The site is freehold and measures approximately 0.49 hectares in size. The site 
falls within a greenspace corridor but it is not allocated as protected recreational open 
space. 

3.6 The plot is a fairly level, well maintained area within residential properties with a 
few trees running adjacent to Caldershaw Brook. The site is known to have difficult 
ground conditions which may limit development options, should the Council be free to 
dispose of the site on the open market. 

Page 26



3.7 Residential development would be suitable along the frontage with Cut Lane, 
however maintaining and enhancing the greenspace corridor is essential. Dwellings 
would be limited to approximately six in total.  

3.8 The agreed site meeting took place on 28 July 2015 and was attended by 
Councillors, local residents and Council officers. 

3.9 On Wednesday 16 September 2015 Rochdale Township Committee received 
another report providing an update of the current position in respect to both plots and 
seeking a decision from the Committee as to the way forward on each site.  It was 
decided that a decision on both sites be deferred pending resolution of the outcome of 
applications for Village Green status as such determinations would represent a 
material change in circumstances. 

Land at Swift Road, Rochdale 

3.8 The Rochdale Township Committee at its meeting on 05 November 2014 
approved the release for disposal of land at Swift Road, Rochdale, and shown edged 
red on the attached plan.

3.9 The site was due to be sold at auction on 26 February 2015 however the site was 
withdrawn pending further investigation because local residents came forward to 
object to the sale. Some residents claimed the site was a designated Town and Village 
Green. This is not the case.

3.10 The site was originally sold by the Council to Whelmar Homes as part of a larger 
housing development plot. The site was subsequently bought back by the Council in 
1988 to be maintained as a landscaped area. Whelmar Homes paid the Council 
£2,500 towards the cost of maintenance of the land. 

3.11 Furthermore the planning permission for the development of the Estate, attached 
the following condition on the land: “The area of public open space shown on the 
approved plan shall be provided for use by the general public concurrent with the 
carrying out of the approved development and shall be maintained to the satisfaction 
of the Local Planning Authority thereafter.” A new planning consent would supersede 
the conditions in the original planning permission.

3.12 Whilst not on the agenda at Rochdale Township Committee meeting on 
Wednesday 4 March 2015 the matter was raised in the open forum. Rochdale 
Township Committee decided that no action was to be taken in respect of the 
development of the site at Swift Road, pending the outcome of a site visit by the Chair 
and Vice Chair of Rochdale Township Committee, Norden Ward Councillors, 
appropriate officers of the Council and local community representatives. 

3.13 In May 2015 members of the local community submitted an application for the 
registration of the land as a Village Green. The objection period to the registration of 
the land as a town or village green ended on 2 September 2015. The application will 
then be reviewed by the Council in its capacity as Commons Registration Authority.

3.14 The site is freehold and measures approximately 0.15 hectares in size. The site is 
a tree-lined triangular plot backing onto a stream with gated entrance. The most 
appropriate use for this land would be for housing, which would need to be compatible 
with the surrounding buildings. 

3.15 The agreed site meeting took place on 28 July 2015 and was attended by 

Page 27



Councillors, local residents and officers. 

3.16 On Wednesday 16 September 2015 Rochdale Township Committee received 
another report providing an update of the current position in respect to both plots and 
seeking a decision from the Committee as to the way forward on each site.  It was 
decided that a decision on both sites be deferred pending resolution of the outcome of 
applications for Village Green status as such determinations would represent a 
material change in circumstances. 

Options

3.16 The range of options available for the future of both sites are identical and 
dependent on the outcome of the Village Green Application:

3.16.1 Retention by the Council as Village greens
In the event that the Village Green applications for the sites are successful then the 
sites would be legally registered as Village Greens. The Council, as landowner, would 
remain responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of the sites. This would include 
regular maintenance as well as dealing with fly-tipping and other anti-social activities 
which may take place on the land. This would have ongoing financial liabilities for the 
Council; or

3.16.2 Community Asset Transfer
The Council could undertake a community asset transfer to the local community. 
Community Asset Transfer would give the local communities opportunity to 
permanently safeguard the future of the sites in accordance with their priorities, and to 
invest in the sites to enhance their value to the local communities; or

3.16.3 Release for Disposal
In the event that the Village Green applications are not successful then the Council is 
in a position to reconsider the disposal of these sites on the open market for residential 
development. Not only would this remove a maintenance liability from the Council but 
would also generate capital receipts and bring new homes to the Borough, along with 
the associated New Homes Bonus and council tax income; or.

3.16.4 Retention in Council ownership for the current use as open land
Retain both sites in their current use, regardless of the outcome of the Village Green 
applications. Retention of the sites will not secure capital receipts or beneficial 
development, nor reduce the Council’s financial and/or environmental liabilities. 

4 Financial Implications

4.1Retention of the sites by the Council, whether formally registered as Village Greens 
or not, would result in the Council incurring ongoing maintenance and upkeep costs. 
Granting a lease of the land to the Friends Groups would safeguard the sites’ retention 
for the community, transfer financial responsibility to the Groups, and provide the 
opportunity for the local communities to invest in the improvement of the sites for 
community benefit. Disposal of the sites on the open market would generate capital 
receipts in addition to removing ongoing maintenance liabilities.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 A Community Asset Transfer involves the transfer of ownership and/or 
management of land or buildings from a statutory body (such as a local council) to a 
community based organisation or group (such as a charity or community interest 
company) at less than market value for local social, economic and environmental 

Page 28



benefit.

5.2 The Council has the power to dispose of land and buildings at less than market 
value where they are able to show that in doing so will result in local improvements to 
social economic and environmental wellbeing. The legislation that allows local 
authorities to do this is the General Disposal Consent (England) 2003.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The disposal would meet the objectives of the Council’s Asset Strategy by 
reducing the number of Council owned assets and financial liabilities. 

7.2 The Council is committed to release surplus assets and to continually review its 
need to hold land and property assets. Disposal of surplus assets assists the Council 
in its provision of services by producing capital receipts, reducing borrowing, reducing 
grant reliance and assists in achieving the efficiency targets. The disposal of surplus 
assets reduces the Council’s liabilities and the release of development opportunities 
encourages economic activity in the Borough. 

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 The sites are currently vacant. Retaining them in its current use carries the risk of 
liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behavior and regular or ad hoc maintenance 
obligations. 

8.2 Community Asset Transfer will pass maintenance responsibilities to members of 
the local community. To manage the risks to members of the public, the Council 
should ensure that any constituted group has the capability of fulfilling this 
responsibility.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 29



ROCH DALE
METROPOLITAN BOROUGH

COUNCIL

Land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road, Rochdale

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

Scale - 1:1250 Date of plot: 04/06/2014

Page 30



ROCHDALE
METROPOLITAN BOROUGH

COUNCIL

Land at Swift Road, Bamford

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150n

Scale - 1:1250 Date of plot: 27/09/2013

Page 31



 

Subject: Land at Sparth Bottoms, Rochdale Status: For Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee

Cabinet Member:  Jacqui Beswick

Date: Wednesday, 9th March 2015
 

Report of: Director of Economy

Author Email:    
nigel.macdonald@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Nigel MacDonald

Tel: Tel: 01706 923275

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

Key Decision: No

1 Purpose of the report

1.1        The purpose of the report is to advise Members of a request to acquire land to 
       the rear of Sparth Islamic Centre as an extension to the existing facilities.

2 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that Township releases the land for disposal.

2.2 That the Head of Legal Services be requested to carry out the legal work in 
connection with the disposal, including a Title Check to ensure there are no 
restrictions that would prevent disposal.

2.3 That the Purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs.

3 Background

3.1 This relates to a small part of Sparth Bottoms Open Space. The area is at the 
back of the Islamic Centre and adjacent to the concrete batching plant.

3.2 Sparth Islamic Centre is a thriving local amenity providing services to the local 
community. One of the services the building hosts is Islamic funerals. At such 
events, attendances can be substantial, with many mourners not being able to 
enter the building and left to stand outside the building, often blocking the 
footpaths around the facility and not being able to properly show their respects.

3.3 The Islamic Centre would like to acquire an area of land from the council to 
create a walled area within which on special occasions and for large 
gatherings, the outdoor space can be used for prayer.

3.4 At its meeting in September 2014, Rochdale Township Planning Sub-
Committee granted planning approval for the proposed external prayer area.

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



3.5 Disposal of the area of land required would not significantly alter the quality and 
usability of the remaining open space.

4          Alternatives considered

4.1 The land could remain as open space, but on the occasions the Islamic Centre 
is holding special events or large funerals, large numbers of people will 
continue to attend and cannot be accommodated within the Centre and 
consequently the local area will continue to be inconvenienced by attendees 
standing outside the building on the grass and footpaths.

5 Financial Implications

5.1 Release of the land could generate a capital receipt for the Council.

5.2 There will be a nominal saving on grounds maintenance costs for the Council

6 Legal Implications

6.1 Under s123 of the Local Government Act 1972 local authorities are given wide 
powers to dispose of land in any manner they wish, including sale of their 
freehold interest, granting a lease or assigning any unexpired term on a lease, 
and the granting of easements. The only constraint is that a disposal must be 
for the best consideration that can be reasonably obtainable for the land. A 
Council cannot dispose of land under this section for a consideration less than 
the best that can reasonably be obtained without the consent of the Secretary 
of State.

6.2 However, it is recognised that there may be circumstances where an authority 
considers it appropriate to dispose of land for less than the best price 
reasonably obtainable i.e. at an undervalue.

6.3 The duty to seek best consideration is subject to certain exceptions. These 
exceptions are conveyed in the Local Government Act 1972: General Disposal 
Consent 2003. This consent gives local authorities autonomy and freedom to 
exercise discretion in the disposal of its land.  It removes the need for a local 
authority to seek specific consent from the Secretary of State for any disposal 
of land where a council can demonstrate the land sale will “help to secure the 
promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being 
of its area” where the difference between the unrestricted value of the interest 
to be disposed of and the consideration accepted (the undervalue) is £2million 
or less.

6.4 The Council  still needs to comply with its duty to obtain the best consideration 
for land disposed of at an undervalue The Council must test whether an offer is 
the best that can reasonably be obtained having regard to any restrictions or 
the effect on value of any conditions/ placed on the use of the land, the basis of 
relevant professional advice including whether the offer under consideration is 
reliable, advice on possible changes to the price that may flow from changes 
the planning situation and other evidence.

6.5 The Council is aware that best consideration does not necessarily mean the 
highest financial offer available and they should clearly not divest themselves 
of valuable public assets unless they are satisfied that the circumstances 
warrant such action.The decision whether or not to accept any offer(s) will take 

Page 33



into account an evaluation of the financial considerations as well as the 
substance and strength of any supporting material submitted with the offer. 
Supporting information can lead the Council to accept a lower offer where it 
has justifiable doubts, for example, about the financial security of a bidder or a 
bidder’s commitment to a proposed scheme.

6.6 Members should also be mindful of the “State Aid” issues. Putting to one side 
therequirements relating to “best consideration” if a local authority sells land for 
less than best consideration then the financial advantage may constitute an 
unlawful State Aid unless the undervalue fits with the de minimis rule, or, a 
block exemption applies, or the Treaty provisions permit the State Aid. 

6.7 The Council cannot dispose, under s123 of the Local Government Act 1972, of 
any land consisting or forming part of an open space unless, before disposing 
of the land, a notice of intention to do so, specifying the land in question, is 
advertised on two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper in which the land is 
situated and until any objections received by the Council in respect of the 
proposed disposal are considered and dealt with. 

6.8 Due to the location of the proposed area of land and the sensitive nature of the 
proposed use it is essential that covenants and conditions are imposed on the 
restrictive covenants and terms of disposal should be negotiated accordingly.

7 Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no personnel implications attached to this report

8 Corporate Priorities

8.1 The disposal will meet the objectives of the Council’s Asset Strategy by 
reducing the number of Council owned assets and financial liabilities.

8.2 The Council is committed to release surplus assets and to continually review its 
need to hold land and property assets. Disposal of surplus assets assists the 
Council in its provision of services by producing capital receipts, reducing 
borrowing, reducing grant reliance and assists in achieving the efficiency 
targets. The disposal of surplus assets reduces the Council’s liabilities and the 
release of development opportunities encourages economic activity in the 
Borough

9. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1 There are no substantial risks to the Council, but release of the land for the 
proposed purpose would remove the potential risk of persons congregating on 
and around the highway when large events are being held at the Centre and 
could improve safety and reduce inconvenience for local residents etc..

10. Equalities Impacts

10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are noworkforce equality issues arising from this report.

10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

Page 34



The following equality/community issues arise from the issues raised in this report as 
set out below: 

Sparth Islamic Centre is a valuable and popular facility for a large part of the local 
community. It provides an essential service to that part of the community and this 
proposal arises out of its success and over-use necessitating the extended area to 
safely accommodate the numbers wishing to attend special events at the Centre

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 35



Page 36



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes
	6 Rochdale Township Planning Sub-Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/12/2015 Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 26/01/2016 Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee
	Minutes


	7 Neighbourhood Planning – Designation of the proposed Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area and Forum
	8 Disposal of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift Road, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Disposal of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift Road, Rochdale
	Append. 2 for Disposal of land at Cut Lane/Caldershaw Road and Swift Road, Rochdale

	9 Land at Sparth Bottoms, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Land at Sparth Bottoms, Rochdale

	11 Land to the rear of Cherrington Drive, Castleton
	Append. 1 for Land to the rear of Cherrington Drive, Castleton


